

Request for Proposal for Hiring an Agency for Developing & Executing sustainable integrated farming model for developing Homestead Land by SHG members.

ASRLMS invites Request for Proposal (RFP) in electronic tendering system from reputed Agencies for developing & executing sustainable integrated farming model for developing Homestead Land by SHG members.

The detailed Request for Proposal (RFP) for the proposed assignment may be obtained from the website http://assamtenders.gov.in. The participating bidders should have valid digital signature certificate (DSC) and have to register in the portal http://assamtenders.gov.in. The RFP should be submitted online in the portal http://assamtenders.gov.in. on or before 26/06//2017 up to 3:00 PM. The RFP may also be seen in the website of ASRLMS i.e. asrlms.assam.gov.in.

The details are stated as under:-

RFP NO	ASRLMS/L&M/Homestead/797/2017-18/01
RFP on	Hiring an Agency for Developing & Executing sustainable integrated farming model for developing Homestead Land by SHG members.
Issued by	Assam State Rural Livelihoods Mission Society.
Issue Date	24/05/2017
Pre-Bid Meeting.	05/06/2017 at 11:00 AM.
Submission Last Date	26/06/2017 at 3:00 PM.

State Mission Director.
ASRLMS.
Sivanath Gogoi Path, Panjabari
Guwahati-37.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Content	Page No
1.	Request for Proposal Terminology	3
2.	Executive summary	4
3.	Terms of Reference	5
4.	Eligibility Criteria	5-6
5.	RFP Process	6
6.	Instruction to Applicant	7
7.	Evaluation of Proposal	9
8.	Right to Vary Scope of work at the time of Award	11
9.	Right to accept any Bid and to reject any or all Bids	11
10.	Notification of Award	11
11.	Issuing the Work Order	11
12.	Performance Guarantee	12
13.	Confidentiality of the Document	12
14.	Rejection Criteria	12
15.	General	12
16.	ANNEXURE I - UNDERTAKING	14
17.	ANNEXURE I, II,III Format for TECHNICAL BID	15-18
18.	ANNEXURE - V format for FINANCIAL BID	19

1. REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL TERMINOLOGY

Throughout this document, the following definitions apply:

- a) "Applicant" means a party that submits, or intends to submit, a Proposal;
- b) "Work Order" means the written order resulting from this RFP issued by the Authority;
- c) "The Authority" means the Assam State Rural Livelihood Mission;
- d) "Must", or "mandatory" means a requirement that must be met in order for a Proposal to receive consideration;
- e) "Proposal" means a proposal submitted in response to this RFP;
- f) "RFP" means this Request for Proposal; and
- g) "Should" or "desirable" means a requirement having a significant degree of importance to the objectives of RFP.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Background:

ASRLMS is an autonomous body formed under the Panchayat and Rural Development Department, Govt. of Assam and registered under Societies Registration Act, 1864. It has been designated by Govt. of Assam to implement the Deen Dayal Antodya Yojana-National Rural Livelihoods Mission as well as the Deen Dayal Upadhaya Grameen Kaushalaya Yojana (DDU-GKY) – a programme for skill development and livelihoods opportunities for rural in the state.

The Assam State Rural Livelihoods Mission Society has been set up with the aim to reduce poverty among rural BPL through building strong grassroots institution of the poor. ASRLMS has multi pronged approach to strengthen livelihoods of the rural poor by promoting women SHGs, providing skill development and placement for youth for wage based occupations in different private/business organizations and imparting self employment oriented training through banks.

Aajeevika – National Rural Livelihoods Mission (NRLM) was launched by the Ministry of Rural Development (MoRD), Government of India, in June 2011. The Mission aims at creating efficient and effective institutional platforms of the rural poor, enabling them to increase household income through sustainable livelihoods enhancements and improved access to financial services.

Placement Linked Skill Development Training Program - Deen Dayal Upadhaya Grameen Kaushalaya Yojana (DDU-GKY) in Assam is also being implemented by the Assam State Rural Livelihoods Mission (ASRLMS) to cater to the challenges of creating a large number of Skill development and livelihood opportunities for the rural poor, occupational aspirations of the rural youth and to increase the income levels of rural poor in the State.

3. TERMS OF REFERENCE:-

A) Objective:

Assam is a high potential rural agrarian state, falling in Eastern Himalayan Agro-Climatic zone (Zone-II). Most Rural families have access to agricultural land with about half a bigha of homestead, even though majority is marginal and small farmers. Rainfall is high (>2000 mm) in Assam. About 90% of the rainfall, however, is concentrated during the monsoon months (July to September) causing flood, inundation of the homesteads and loss in the plantations in the plain areas. On the other hand, because of the water holding capacity of the soil is low, the absence of the rain (October to March) causes immediate water stress, affecting the flora.

Most of the household in Assam has a homestead land adjoined to their house. The homestead is well fenced, mostly having irrigation source. Places where inundation is not a problem, homestead is covered with plantation crops like Arecanut and Betel vine or black pepper. Inter cropping is not wide spread.

Awareness and practice of scientific orchard management- proper spacing, irrigation, manuring, plant protection and other cultural operation is completely missing, resulting in low productivity and income from existing plantation. Besides, with increase in age of the plantation, there is natural decline in productivity per plant due to lack of systematic replacement of old plants with newer one. All these constraint have led to low and declining income per unit area of homestead.

Adhering to the objective of the ASRLM, a livelihood intervention model has been proposed to revamp the homestead area of SHGs members'. The proposed model is for revamping homestead of Assam through integrated farming system to enhance income per unit area land. The model has been proposed for a homestead area of 0.5 Bigha per House Hold and when combined for a cluster of SHGs for a contiguous area will have economies of scale.

B) Scope of work:

The Scope of Work for the Agency shall be, but not limited to the following:-

- a) Design and implement a sustainable model for SHG members under ASRLM for Integrated Farming at Homestead land.
 - 1) Scoping study to finalise the activities, crops and geographical areas etc. for the project. The Commodities that will be focussed in this value chain will be ginger, garlic, black pepper & other spices.
 - 2) Training on Package of Practice (POP) and value chain development.
 - 3) Facilitate infrastructure facilities such as Common Facility Centre, Ware house etc
 - 4) Identification of scope for value addition and marketing for future expansion.
 - 5) Formulating production strategies based on crops and commodities to be produced.
 - 6) Identification & Mobilization of 6000 Self Help Group (SHG) members at ground level for implementation of the project.
 - 7) Training on technical and soft skills to the SHGs for running Producer's collectives.
 - 8) Third party assessment and certification for SHGs.

b) The model should be an end to end value chain linkage i.e. from training, production to market linkage.

C) Duration of the Assignment:

The duration of the assignment will be for a period of One (1) Year. The assignment may be further extended depending upon satisfactory performance of Agency & requirement of ASRLMS.

D) Project Support:-

ASRLMS will provide available necessary information, data, reports and other documents required for accomplishing the objective of the assignment. However, the professionals of the agency will have to visit field operations for collection of additional information. ASRLMS would provide necessary liason with BMMUs and DMMUs to facilitate the work smoothly.

E) Reporting:-

The State Mission Director or any other assigned official of ASRLMS will be responsible for the review and monitoring of the progress of the assignment regularly.

4. Eligibility Criteria:

- a) The Agency must be incorporated & registered in India, under the Indian Companies Act /Societies Registration Act/Trust Act/any other Act in India and should be in operations in India for minimum of 5 years.
- b) The Agency should have minimum average annual turnover of INR Fifty Lakhs or above for the last financial years (2013-14, 2014-15, 2015-16) during the last three financial years.
- c) The Agency must have at least Three (3) prior project experiences / assignment in developing value chain management for the Livelihood sector during last 5 years, out of which One prior project experiences / assignment should be in Farm Livelihoods.
- d) The Agency should not have been barred by ant PSU/Govt Dept in doing business with them. (Please submit declaration)

The Agency must upload scanned copies of the following documents in the website https://assamtenders.gov.in:-

- I. Name of the Firm/ Organization/ Institute.
 (Detail of the organization (including Name, Complete Address, Phone No, Contact Person, Email ID, Brief Description of the organization etc.)
- II. Copy of the registration certificate from Competent Authority.
- III. Copy of the Service Tax Registration certificate.
- IV. Copy of Income Tax PAN Card No (Photocopy of the PAN Card to be submitted).
- V. Experience in Three (3) prior project experience / assignment in developing value chain management for the Livelihoods sector during last 5 Years, out of which One prior project experience / assignment should be in Farm Livelihoods.

 (Work Order/Completion Certificate to be furnished)

VI. Copy of the Annual Audit Report have minimum annual turnover of INR 50 Lakhs or above for the last financial years (2013-14, 2014-15, 2015-16) during the last three financial years.

5. RFP Process:

- i) The Authority is the Work Order issuing authority as relates to this RFP.
- ii) This RFP is illustrative in nature and all narrations are intended to be used by the applicant as a preliminary background explanation. This RFP does not necessarily contain all relevant information and the Authority reserves the right to amend its requirements or the information contained in this document at any time during the RFP process.
- iii) The Authority offer no warranties in regard to the information contained in this RFP and shall not be liable for any loss or damage as relates to this RFP for any applicant, potential applicant or any other third party arising as a result of reliance on this RFP's information or any subsequent communication.
- iv) If the Authority decides to select an applicant for the services, at that time a detailed Work Order will be issued to the applicant selected. This Work Order will not be made available until the selection of a successful applicant.
- v) Neither the RFP document nor any other related document shall constitute a contract or agreement with Authority, except as where specifically referenced in ANNEXURE 1.
- vi) The Authority reserves the right to disqualify any applicant who provides information which later proves to be incorrect, or which does not supply the information required by this RFP. The Authority will not be liable for any costs of any applicant participating in this RFP.
- viii) The submission of a response to this RFP by any applicant or potential applicant confirms the applicant or potential applicant's acceptance of all terms and conditions of this RFP.
- ix) Respondents to this RFP or their agents may not make any contact with any party employed or directly associated with the Authority as relates to this RFP. Any query/requests for clarifications on the RFP by the Applicant should be sent via e-mail (only) to asrlms.india@gmail.com

6. INSTRUCTIONS TO APPLICANT

A. General Requirements

- i) The response to RFP is required to address all technical requirements contained within this RFP.
- ii) Only proposals submitted strictly in accordance with the RFP Documents or as may be required by the Authority will be considered as valid proposals by the Authority.
- iii) The RFP is not a Work Order. A separate Work Order will be made available only after selection of the preferred applicant.
- iv) All information supplied by the Authority in connection with this RFP shall be treated as confidential.

B. Timetable

The RFP timetable is given below. The Authority retains the right to vary or discontinue the process or any part thereof at its absolute discretion. The summary of various activities with regard to this invitation of bids are listed in the table below:

Activity	Date
Issue of RFP Document	24/05/2017
Pre-Bid Meeting.	05/06/2017 at 11:00 AM.
Deadline for Proposal submission	26/06/2017 (3.00 PM)
Opening of Eligibility Criteria	26/06/2017 (at 4:00 PM)
Opening of Technical Bid	To be Informed.
Opening of Financial Bid	To be Informed.

C. Period of Bid Validity

The Bid Validity Period will be 90 days from the date of submission of Bids.

D. <u>Submission of RFP</u>

- 1. The Bidder must complete and sign the Undertaking at ANNEXURE 1
- 2. Only one original form of proposal signed by the authorised signatory is required by the Authority. No typed or pencil signatures will be accepted.
- 3. The proposal submitted must be without any overwriting, corrections, double typing, etc.
- 4. The Bidder will upload their proposals in three parts. The first part will contain documents relating to **Eligibility criteria** and the second part will contain the documents relating to **Technical Bid**. The third part will contain the **Financial Bid**.
- 5. The Bidder shall upload the following documents containing the Eligibility Criteria, Technical Proposal and Financial Proposal in https://assamtenders.gov.in. on or before **3.00 PM** dated **26/06/2017**.

E. Preparation of RFP Document:

E.1 Eligibility Criteria:

- a) The Agency must be incorporated & registered in India, under the Indian Companies Act /Societies Registration Act/Trust Act/any other Act in India and should be in operations in India for minimum of 5 years.
- b) The Agency should have minimum annual turnover of INR 50 Lakh or above for the last financial years (2013-14, 2014-15, 2015-16) during the last three financial years.
- c) The Agency must have at least Three (3) prior project experiences / assignment in developing value chain management for the Livelihood sector during last 5 years. Out of which (One (1) prior project experience / assignment should be in Farm Livelihoods.
- d) The Agency should not have been barred by ant PSU/Govt Dept in doing business with them. (Please submit declaration)

E.2 Technical Bid:

The technical bid should contain:-

- 1. Concept & Approach of the proposed strategy for implementing the tasks to deliver the expected output(s).
- 2. Project experiences / assignment in developing value chain management for the Livelihood sector during last 5 years.
- 3. Project experience / assignment in developing value chain in Farm Livelihoods during last 5 years.
- 4. Work Plan {Outline the plan for the implementation of the main activities/tasks of the assignment, their content and duration, phasing and interrelations, milestones, and tentative delivery dates of the reports. The proposed work plan should be consistent with the Concept & Approach of the proposed strategy, showing your understanding of the TOR and ability to translate them into a feasible working plan. A list of the final documents (including reports) to be delivered as final output(s) should be included.

(Format for Technical Bid is given at ANNEXURE II, III, IV,V)

E.3 Financial Bid:

The financial bid will be the Overall Cost for "<u>Hiring an Agency for Developing & Executing sustainable integrated farming model for developing Homestead Land by SHG members"</u> as per the Scope of Work as laid down in the Terms of Reference.

- 1. Bidder should provide all prices as per the prescribed format under this Form. Bidder should not leave any field blank. In case the field is not applicable, Bidder must indicate "0" (Zero) in all such field.
- 2. All the prices are to be entered in Indian Rupees INR (%age values are not allowed).
- 3. It is mandatory to provide breakup of all Taxes, Duties and Levies wherever applicable and/or payable.
- 4. The final Financial Bid of the Bidder shall be inclusive of all Taxes, Duties and Levies including Service Tax, etc.
- 5. Authority shall take into account all Taxes, Duties & Levies for the purpose of Evaluation.

(The Financial Bid Summary Form is given at ANNEXURE - V)

7. EVALUATION OF PROPOSAL

The evaluation would consist of following phases:

Phase I: Evaluation of Eligibility Criteria.

Phase II: Evaluation of Technical Bids.

Phase III: Evaluation of Financial Bids.

Phase IV: Combined Evaluation of Technical and Financial Bids.

Phase I: Evaluation of Eligibility Criteria:

In this part the Agency will be evaluated for the fulfilment of the conditions specified in the **Eligibility Criteria** .

Phase II: Evaluation of Technical Bids:

- 1. In this part the technical bid of only those agencies who have qualified the Phase I i.e. **Eligibility Criteria** will be evaluated.
- 2) The technical bid will be analyzed and evaluated on the parameters shown in the table below and the technical bid marks shall be assigned to each bid on the basis of following evaluation matrix:-

	Technical Score	Minimum Qualifying Score.
Concept & Approach	50	25
Project experience/ assignment in		
developing sustainable value chain		
management for the Livelihoods Sector		
during last 5 years.	20	10
Prior project experience/ assignment in		
developing value chain in Farm		
Livelihoods during last 5 years.	20	10
Work Plan	10	5
Total Score	100	50

3. Analysis of technical bid

- i. In this part, the technical bid will be analyzed and evaluated and the technical bid marks (Stm) shall be assigned to each bid on the basis of following above evaluation matrix
- ii. Each competency group will have Minimum Qualification Score and only those Technical Bids receiving marks greater than or equal to cut-off marks in each competency group will be eligible for consideration in financial bids. If required, the Authority may seek specific clarifications from any or all Bidder(s) at this stage. The Authority shall determine the Bidder that qualify for the next phase after reviewing the clarifications provided by the Bidder(s). The bidder may be asked to make a presentation before the Purchase Committee to explain the points on the basis of which Technical bids will be evaluated.
- iii. Technical Bid Score: The Technical Bid Score 'St' of the Bidder shall be derived as under

St = (Stm/SH), where

St is the Technical Bid Score

Stm = Total technical bid marks of the bid under consideration.

SH = Highest total technical bid marks amongst all evaluated bids.

1. The Authority reserves the right to modify the evaluation process at any time during the RFP process, without assigning any reason, whatsoever, and without any requirement of intimating the Bidder of any such change. At any time during the process of evaluation the Authority may seek specific clarifications from any or all Bidder.

Phase III: Evaluation of Financial Bids:

In this phase, the Financial Bids of the Bidder, who are technically qualified in Phase II, shall be considered. Formula to determine the scores for the Financial Bids shall be as follows

$$Sf = (FL / F),$$

Where

Sf is the Financial Score

FL is the value of lowest Commercial Bid

F is the price quoted in the bid under consideration.

Phase IV: Combined Evaluation of Technical & Financial Bid

i. The Total score of the Bidder will be determined as under Total Score (Ts) = $(70 \times St) + (30 \times Sf)$

- ii. The Bid of the Bidder, who obtains the highest Ts value, will be rated as the best Bid. In the event of a tie, the bid with the highest technical score (St) will be rated as the best bid. Beyond that, Authority will decide the matter in its full discretion.
- iii. The Authority will award the Contract to the successful Bidder whose bid has been determined to be substantially responsive and has been determined as the best bid, provided further that the Bidder is determined to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily. The Authority shall however not bind itself to accept the best bid or any bid and reserves the right to accept any bid, wholly or in part.

9. Right to Vary Scope of work at the time of Award:

The Authority may at any time, by a written order given to the Bidder, make changes within the general scope of the Work. If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, the Bidder's performance of any part of the work, whether changed or not changed by the order, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the agreed Price or delivery schedule, or both, and the Work Order shall accordingly be amended. Any claims by the Bidder for adjustment under this Clause must be asserted within 15 days from the date of the Bidder's receipt of the Authority's changed order.

10. Right to accept any Bid and to reject any or all Bids:

The Authority reserves the right to accept any bid, and to annul the RFP process and reject any or all bids at any time prior to award of work, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected Bidder or Bidder or any obligation to inform the affected Bidder or Bidder of the grounds for the Authority's action.

11. Notification of Award:

Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity, the Authority will notify the successful Bidder by e-mail or in writing, by registered letter that its bid has been accepted.

12. Issuing the Work Order:

At the same time as the Authority notifies the successful Bidder that its bid has been accepted, the Authority will send the Work Order, incorporating its requirements including the conditions laid down in the RFP. Within 7 days of receipt of the Work Order, the successful Bidder shall

sign and date the Work Order and return a copy to the Authority as a token of acceptance of the requirements laid down.

13. Performance Guarantee:

The successful agency will execute a Performance Guarantee for **5** % of the total value of the contract in the form of Account Payee Demand Draft or a Bank Guarantee from a Nationalized Commercial Bank in an acceptable form. The Performance Guarantee should remain valid for a period of 60 days beyond the date of completion of the project.

14. Confidentiality of the Document:

This RFP is confidential and anything contained in this RFP shall not be disclosed in any manner, whatsoever.

15. Rejection Criteria:

Besides other conditions and terms highlighted in the RFP document, bids may be rejected under following circumstances:

- 1. Bids that are not submitted through e-Tendering system.
- 2. Incomplete bids that do not quote for the complete Scope of Work as indicated in the bidding documents, addendum (if any) and any subsequent information given to the Bidder
- 3. Bids providing information that are found to be incorrect/ misleading at any stage / time during the RFP Process.
- 4. Bids in which the total lump sum price quoted by the Bidder is not inclusive of all taxes, duties, fees, levies, works contract tax and other charges.
- 5. Bids made through Telex /Telegraphic / Fax/E. Mail.
- 6. Bids which do not confirm unconditional validity of the bid for 90 days from the date of opening of bid.
- 7. Bids where prices are not firm during the entire duration of the contract and / or with any qualifications
- 8. Bids that do not confirm unconditional acceptance of full responsibility of executing the 'Scope of Work' of this RFP.
- 9. Bids in which the Bidder seeks to influence the Authority's bid evaluation, bid comparison or contract award decisions.

16. General

- i) Bidder shall not make any alteration / changes in the bid after the closing time and date. Unsolicited correspondences from Bidder will not be considered.
- ii) If at any stage of RFP process or during the currency of the Work, any suppression / falsification of such information is brought to the knowledge of the Authority, the Authority shall have the right to reject the bid or cancel the Work Order, as the case may be, without any compensation to the Bidder.
- iii) The Bidder shall deem to have complied with all clauses in the RFP under all the sections/chapters of the Bidding document, unless otherwise stated in the deviation statement. Evaluation will be carried out on the available information in the bid.
- iv) Any other point, which may arise at the time of evaluation, will be decided by Authority for assessment of the bids.

v) Other important Information.

- a) The Authority is not bound to accept the lowest or any RFP or to assign any reason for non-acceptance. The Authority reserves its right to accept the RFP either in full or in part. Conditional Bids will be rejected outright.
- b) The Authority reserves the Right to place an order for the full or part quantities under any items of work under Scope of work
- d) After issue of the Work Order the Performance Guarantee will be forfeited in case of undue delays in performance by the agency.
- e) The Authority reserves the right to cancel the Work Order of any agency/ agencies in case of change in the procedures or unsatisfactory services.
- f) In the event of any dispute, the tribunals and courts in Guwahati will have the exclusive jurisdiction in respect of all matters pertaining to the agreement between the Consultant/Organization/Institute and the Authority.

UNDERTAKING

TO:	The State Mission Director Assam State Rural Livelihoods Mission Society
I/We	Panjabari, Guwahati-37
Of (in	sert business address)
<u>Agen</u> Home will	by, submit our proposal in response to the Request for Proposal (RFP) for "Hiring and cy for Developing & Executing sustainable integrated farming model for developing estead Land by SHG members" and undertake to execute and complete the services as we be reasonably required to be performed, in accordance with our proposal, the RFP rements and the final work order to be issued by the Authority.
	RFP shall remain valid to be accepted by the Authority and shall not be withdrawn for a d of 90 days from date of submission of bids.
	understand that the Authority reserves the right to accept / reject any application and the tion is at their sole discretion.
Autho	orized Signature
Name	e in full:
Agen	cy Name:
Title:	
Date:	

(On Company/Firm Letter Head)

TECHNICAL BID

REQUEST FOR Proposal for "Hiring an Agency for Developing & Executing sustainable integrated farming model for developing Homestead Land by SHG members"

Form A: Technical Bid - CONCEPT & APPROACH OF THE PROPOSED STRATEGY.

<u>Concept and Approach</u>.{Please explain your understanding of the objectives of the assignment as outlined in the Terms of Reference (TORs), the concept & approach you would adopt for implementing the tasks to deliver the expected output(s), and the degree of detail of such output. Please do not repeat/copy the TORs in here.}

Annexure - III

Form B: Technical Bid - Project experience/ assignment in developing value chain management in the Livelihoods sector during last Five years.

Project experience/ assignment in developing value chain management in the Farm Livelihoods during last Five years.

Annexure - IV

Form B: Technical Bid - WORK PLAN.

Work Plan.{Outline the plan for the implementation of the main activities/tasks of the assignment, their content and duration, phasing and interrelations, milestones, and tentative delivery dates of the reports. The proposed work plan should be consistent with the Concept & Approach of the proposed strategy, showing your understanding of the TOR and ability to translate them into a feasible working plan. A list of the final documents (including reports) to be delivered as final output(s) should be included.

(On Company/Firm Letter Head)

FINANCIAL BID

SI No	Description	Value in INR	
1.	Professional Fees1		
	Professional Fees2		
	Professional Fees3		
	Taxes		
Α	Sub Total		
	Miscellaneous Expenses 1		
	Miscellaneous Expenses 2		
	Miscellaneous Expenses 3		
	Taxes if any on Miscellaneous Expenses.		
В	Sub Total		
	Grand Total (A + B)		

(The Bidders can add more rows, if required)

Authorised Signature:-
Name & Designation of Signatory:-
Address:-
Date:-
Seal of Organisation:-